BARAGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Regular Meeting
Monday, February 9, 2026, 2026-5:00 P.M.
16 N. Third Street, L’Anse, M| 49946
PROPOSED AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL
Commissioner Niemela, Commissioner Dakota, Commissioner Kent, Commissioner Menge, and
Commissioner Deleon

2. APPROVE AGENDA

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Regular Meeting ~ January 12, 2026

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS- Agenda items Only

5. TREASURER’S REPORT- INFORMATION ONLY - NO MOTION REQUIRED
6. APPROVAL OF BILLS

a. BCMH Trustee Per Diem- $990.00 (January 2026)

b. Approval of County Commissioner and Dept. Bills, $46,731.83

c. Approval of Prepaid Accounts, $377,991.80

d. Approval of Sheriff Dept. Commissary Checking Account, $7,067.21
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. 911 Director/EM Manager Position

8. ACTION ITEMS

a. FY2025 Audit, Contract Susan Sanford

b. Sheriff's Dept., Old Patrol Car — Bids

c. BC Road Commission, Letter of Support - “BUILD” FY2026 Grant

d. Baraga County Chamber of Commerce, 2026 Membership

9. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

10. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
¢ BCMH Board of Trustees, Minutes
e Copper Shores Community Health Foundation, Thank you
¢ Village of L'Anse, Notice of Intent — Master Plan

11. RESOLUTIONS

12, COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS
13. PUBLIC COMMENTS

14. ADJOURNMENT



18341 US Hwy 41 L’Anse, Ml 49946

L Haraga County Memorial Hispital. 0

b

906-524-3300 www.bcmh.org

Board of Trustee Meeting Attendance - January 2026

Monthly Stipend: Board Briefing of 01-15-2026:
Shirley Younggren $100.00 Shirley Younggren $30.00
Jim Loman $100.00 Jim Loman $30.00
Carole LaPointe $100.00 Carole LaPointe $30.00
Cathy Wadaga S 0.00 Cathy Wadaga $ 0.00
Jayne Walbridge $100.00 Jayne Walbridge $30.00
Kate Beer $100.00 Kate Beer $30.00
Burt Mason $100.00 Burt Mason $30.00
Med Control Authority Mtg: none Regular Board Meeting of 01-20-2026:
Shirley Younggren S 0.00 Shirley Younggren $30.00
Jim Loman $30.00
Carole LaPointe $30.00
Cathy Wadaga $30.00
Kate Beer $30.00

Jayne Walbridge (online) $30.00

Burt Mason $30.00

000



Checks Written 1/1/2026 to 1/31/2026

Printed 2/3/2026 10:53:20 AM

Number Date ID Comment Amount
2815 1/5/2026 97th District Court Baraga County $300.00
2816 1/5/2026 8513 CODY RANDALL HAATAJA $536.00
2817 1/7/2026 Bob Barker Company Inc $218.68
2818 1712026 Stellar Services $15.50
2819 1/7/2026 Baraga County Treasurer $222.18
2820 1/15/2026 97th District Court Baraga County $300.00
2821 1/20/2026 Stellar Services 3721.94
2822 1/20/2026 Pats Foods $47.32
2823 1/20/2026 Pepsi Cola of Heoughton $1088.90
2824 112212026 97th District Court Baraga County $300.00
2825 1/26/2026 97th District Court Baraga County $300.00
2826 1/26/2026 97th District Court Baraga County $300.00
2827 1/26/2026 Steliar Services $29.18
2828 112772026 97th District Court Baraga County $300.00
2829 1/29/2026 Baraga County Treasurer $2377.51
$7057.21
Printed 2/3/2026 Confidential Property of Baraga Mi Page 1 of 1



Member of:

Susan D. Sanford, CPA PLLC

Certified Public Acc
3303 Silver Lake Road, Traverse City, MI 49684

ied Fraud Examiners

ation
( 231 ) 357-5092 -Michigan Asscciat
Email- susan.sanford@cpa.com Certified Public Accountants

January 31, 2026

To the County Board of Commissioners
Baraga County
L’ Anse, Michigan 49953

I am pleased to confirm my understanding of the services I am to provide the County of Baraga, for the
year ended September 30, 2025.

Audit Scope and Objectives

I will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund information, which
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the County of Baraga as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2025. This does not include an audit of the Baraga County Road Commission or the
Baraga Memorial Hospital, component units, which have separate audits. Accounting standards
generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary
information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the County
of Baraga’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of my engagement, I will apply certain limited
procedures to the County of Baraga’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained
during my audit of the basic financial statements. I will not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting
principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
2) Budgetary Comparison Schedules
3) GASB required OPEB and Pension supplementary information

I have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the
County of Baraga’s financial statements. I will subject the following supplementary information to the
auditing procedures applied in my audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial
statements as a whole:

Non-Major Governmental Fund Schedules
General Operating Analysis Schedules (revenues and expenditures)



County of Baraga Engagement Letter | September 30, 2025

i

BRI

The objectives of my audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s
report that includes my opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all
material respects, in conformity with GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary
information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial
statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

I will conduct my audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting records
of the County’s other procedures I consider necessary to enable me to express such opinions. As part
of an audit in accordance with GAAS, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

I will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management. I will also evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. I will
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3)
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable
to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal
control, and because I will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by me, even though the audit
is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not designed to
detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, I will inform the appropriate level of
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that
comes to my attention. I will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of
laws or governmental regulations that come to my attention, unless clearly inconsequential. My
responsibility as auditor is limited to the period covered by my audit and does not extend to any later
periods for which I am not engaged as auditor.

I will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

My procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of liabilities by
correspondence with selected creditors, and financial institutions. 1 will also request written
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.



b u’y

o

County of Baraga Engagement Letter }%

|

{

I may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in
serving your account. I may share confidential information about you with these service providers
but remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information.
Accordingly, I maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of
your personal information. In addition, I will secure confidentiality agreements with all service
providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and I will take reasonable precautions
to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of
your confidential information to others. In the event that I am unable to secure an appropriate
confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your
confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, I will remain responsible
for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.

My audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

I will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control
relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance
on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, I will express no such
opinion. However, during the audit, I will communicate to management and those charged with
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA
professional standards.

I have identified the following significant risk(s) of material misstatement as part of my audit
planning:

Management override
Revenue recognition
Significant unusual transaction and reporting

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, I will perform tests of the County’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of my audit will not be to
provide an opinion on overall compliance and I will not express such an opinion.

Other Services

I will also assist in preparing the financial statements of the County of Baraga in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information
provided by you.

I will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services
are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. I, in my sole professional judgment,
reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as
assuming management responsibilities.

—



County of Baraga Engagement Letter é September 30, 2025
- f

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statement preparation services
and any other nonattest services I provide; oversee the services by designating an individual,
preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the
adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

My audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for
designing, implementing, establishing and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection
and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America with the oversight of those charged with governance.

Management is also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records and
related information available to me and for accuracy and completeness of that information (including
information from outside of the general and subsidiary legers). You are also responsible for providing
me with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all
related parities and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other matters (2) additional
information that I may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons
within the government from whom I determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the
conclusion of my audit, I will require certain written representations from you about your
responsibilities for the financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and
for confirming to me in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by me during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each
opinion unit taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing me about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving
(1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include
informing me of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or
others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies
with applicable laws and regulations.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which I have been engaged
to report on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). You agree to include my report on the supplementary information in any
document that contains, and indicates that I have reported on, the supplementary information. You
also agree to make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary
information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with my report thereon.



County of Baraga Engagement Letter ?

Your responsibilities include acknowledging to me in the written representation letter that (1) you
are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2)
you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in
accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from
those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you
have disclosed to me any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or
presentation of the supplementary information.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

I understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations I request and will
locate any documents selected by me for testing.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Susan D Sanford, CPA PLLC and
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit
documentation will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to State of Michigan, its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government
Accountability Office for the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or
to carry out oversight responsibilities. I will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Susan D Sanford. Furthermore,
upon request, I may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties.
These parties may intend or decide to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others,
including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the State. If [ am aware that a federal
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, I will contact the party(ies) contesting
the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Susan D Sanford is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. I expect to begin my audit on
approximately February 23 2026 and to issue my reports no later than March 31, 2026, assuming
records are in an auditable condition and the component unit audits are issued timely.

My fee for services will be at my standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that I agree that my
gross fee, including expenses, will not exceed $20,250. The contract may be extended for two
additional years based on mutual agreement between both parties. The audit fee includes any
additional follow up or consultation with the County personnel, State and Federal Government
personnel regarding the audit and preparing the annual F-65 report, pension report and Municipal
Finance Qualifying Statement. My standard hourly rate is $135. My invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with my
firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may
not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If T elect to terminate my services for nonpayment,
my engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination,
even if I have not completed my report. You will be obligated to compensate me for all time
expended and to reimburse me for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above
fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary,
I will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before I incur the additional costs.



County of Baraga Engagement Letter September 30, 2025

Reporting

[ will issue a written report upon completion of my audit of the County of Baraga’s financial statements.
My report will be addressed to the County of Baraga’s Council. Circumstances may arise in which my
report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of my audit. Depending on the
nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for me to modify my opinions, add a separate section,
or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to my auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw
from this engagement. If my opinions are other than unmodified, I will discuss the reasons with you in
advance. If, for any reason, I am unable to complete the audit or am unable to form or have not formed
opinions, I may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or [ may withdraw from this engagement.

[ appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the County of Baraga and believe this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of my engagement. If you have any questions, please let me know. If
you agree with the terms of my engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and
return it to me.

Very truly yours,

Susan D. Sanford

) {} DA D 1
/.d,ﬁg/j{?/r; A ,.ﬁ;%7¥ﬁ’gcfl CPAPLLO
%

Susan D. Sanford, CPA PLLC

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the County of Baraga.

By:

Title:

Date




.

‘suogowo.d ug uoisnjoul pue dew
9y3 uo pajunad oo} 1noA sapnjpus diysiosuods
00T$ 4nojA "sxong eSeleq 10j Suimesp wiopues

2 01Ul p2Jajua aie SBHS “jjews pue 8iq y1oq Jod
-ap Aepijoy Aofua 03 aijgnd By 4oj spind e Ajpuaw
--1581U0D B 10U SI Sy} "Ino1 siy} Joj dews e uo
paisy} aJe sAejdsip 100pINO pue wseisnyiua sugel
-009p SBWIISLIYD JI3Y) B1BYS 0] JURM OYM 53553U
-isng pue sawoy Ajuno) edeieg gzpz 2quiadag

inoj 1033q AepijoH

‘suogowoad uj uoisnpug pue

dew ay31 uo 030} 1noA sapnpul diysiosuods 00TS
ANOA "SI3YI0 YUM S3Unseat) 4oyl aueys pue sanunp
-ap 01 syuapisas oy Ayunpuoddo ue sapiaoad pue
eaJe a3y 03 siaddoys sBulig JUSAS SIYL SaUS Jidy)
e aoejd 03 uBis e yum Suoje dew ajes pieA sy}

uo papnout 1S SulSs 119Y3 aAeY pue raquiey)
3yl yum ajes 419y} 4a1si8aa ued Aluno) edeseq

Ul SUS YHM SISSIUISN( pue SIWOH 9207 ‘€T aunf

ajes piej Kyuno) ebeseg

suorjowoad
Ul UOISNjIul PUE JUBA3 By} 1k Aejdsip uo udis
anoA sapnpui diysiosuods gOz$ 4NOA  'SI|IWS
pue ‘saleds ‘saju1s JO uoousaye ue 1o} Jayiad
-0] 9Wod sa8e |je JO saljluie) aiaym ‘juswied
-mno Suymog Ajlwed [enuue 1say SH axunouue
01 pajjlyl Si Jaquiey) 3yl 9zoz ‘LT Adenuer

JUIIRUINO |
Buijmodg dissepy ung Apuwey

‘JU3AD BYy1 1e udis sepnypd

-ul azuoug QOT$ ‘IuUSA9 8yl je ulis ‘uonen
-5188J Wieal SapNUl JOAJIS 0SES "1UBAS Byl 1k
uSis ‘uoneJsisigas weay ‘uoisnpul suopowouid
sapnjoul PIoD Q0SS "IUSAd Byl e udis ‘uonesy
-si88.4 wea} ‘uoisnjoul suonowold ‘uoniudodal
Josuods auo-ui-a9joy S3pNpPUl wnuneld 0S.%
:3jqejienr sjpAs| diysiosuods  samunuoddo
ales pue sazud ysed yum 3uoje Jsuuip punol
-3sod e 0] pajeasy ase syuedppied sawjiqe
jje JO SJ42}|08 S2WOd(aM 1Ryl JeuLio) ajquields
uosiad-Ino} ‘Bj0y-gT ue sainiedy Jead ayy Jo Js
-sjeipuny 3sa8ie} s Jaquiey) syl 9zoz ‘st AInf
jusuleuanoj jjon

s

‘'suonjowotd uj uoisnjoul pue

JUaA2 33 1 Aejdsip uo uSis anoA sapnpui diysios
-uods g§z$ inoA “Aliea 1no s||as pue Auew syoeipe
1UBA3 SiY] "S}jel91BM SNOJ3WINU pue ‘UOALY LA
‘SUBIUNOIA UOINH 3yl papn|dul sino} ised -a8e
-1{04 |1e} Sutuunis pue Ajuno) eSeseg [njuneaq jo
suoL99s Y3nosyl 1noy papind e si apu ALY Syl ‘1ey
pue Jeau wodj siseisnyiua peos-yo 3uiBuug "12qol
-00 ut Aepanies 1s1y ayl Ajjenuuy 9z0z ‘€ 4940120

INJUBSAPY SSoUISPIM ALY

‘suoprjowoad ul UOISNDU] PUEB JUIAD aY]
1e Aejdsip uo uBis JnoA sapnjpoui diysiosuods 05z$
4noy “Jaquiey) syl Aq papiaoad aue Sufisel summ
pue siazpaddy jSuippiq 0 uny ay3 ui uiofl pue 3eq
paxJewun ue uj way uonone ue Suulg saienpess
jooyds ydiy jeoo} 01 papieme 39 [jIm 1yl sdiys
-1ejoyds 104 Asuow Buisies aym 1no 1y3iu e Aof

-U pue az|je10s 03 Ajunyoddo uy 9zoz ‘LT jady

ajbuiN B
XiiN puokag pue Aeg meusaama)y




UOWIIAJOARL RHUWIWMWO7 pUy
uoudapAap [YH9ISS2 0
Qs H2pYa) UDNOIUL 240Ul
SSOUISVIY FUVIGIN ¥ ddoddns puy
"DUUND ‘ALY 94 SIUOISSIUA MO

Bao-Aegmeusamal]

saniunjioddQ
diysiosuods

ueg 3xaN funo) ebeseg

Uy

O AD® Y

Aive MYNIZIMII

920¢

- 13QI3|SMau
JNO Ul pue JUAAd 3y} 3B paziudodal g [itM
uoleuop noj "93ie| 001 JO |{ews 00} 51 uoneu
-op ON jSsauisng 1noA 1oy ANjigisiA 198 0} Aem
12348 e 3q ued Siy} ‘swall jeuonowosd aney
noA §| *saziid 100P Se PUB S3|4Jel INO Ul pash aq
01 sajeoyiad YIS 10 sway Suneuop JapIsuo)

$9Zlig 100 / suidl] Sjjied

- JO119|SMBU INo Ui paziusodal
aq ||!M UOHBUOP JNOA 'SISOD aALelIsiutpe
azIpisgns pue ‘sapunitoddo duiuies} 150y ‘59
-$SaUISNQ |BIO] 151SSE 0} ANUKRUOD [|IM 1BYL wod
-dns puny |pJouad awodPM 3N isuonesado
Joquiey) uoddns 03 Y pInoMm noA Ing ‘noA
0} |eadde 3,uss0p diyssosuods JuaAd 3gAei

yoddng Jequuey) je1ausg

g

aj8uiiAl B XIA 943 18 paziudodas aq [jim uol
-euop Jnoj "pung diysiejoyds ayl o1 uoteuop
e Y1IM HOYS SIY} ui Jaquiey) syl Suuiof 1apis
-u0) "3Jniny Yl Ul JUBUWIISIAUL UE SI uoneonpl

punj diysiejoyds saquuei)

-13SiRIpUN} PUR JUBAS [BID0S 1eai8 v
-qn|D J0D asuy, 1e Buyo8 WBIN 9Z0T isnany

§109 MoD

‘paiepaidde Ajjeals pue papasau 3.e
|je—J291Un|oA 1O ‘SwWall dled ‘s91e01a0 YId
‘syoyeuop Aleisuow INGHIUOD ‘aziud e 10S
-uodg 'sjoAd| AuBw 1B JUBWEUINO] Suiysy syl
Joj samunyoddo diysiosuods jo a3uel-apim
e aie aiayl -Auno) edeieg 01 JUSWEUINOL
Suysid disselD Aeg meusamay Jisle w3anos
yonw ayy ssuuq uso SN ‘loagsa4 INOJL
ayo7 Awuno) pbping s juawpedaq aJlf Isuv,l
ay} yum uopounfuod U 9z0Z ‘€1-¢T dunf

juswieuino ] Buiysiy

sisse])y Aeg meussma)]

sazid uim 01
saoueyd pue s88e arsel Joj Bulydiess sepnp
Ul yotym uane Appusup-Ajiuey 931) B UUM
Anunwiwod 3yl sapiroid usn XN 9Z0T judy

yuny 663 ssyseq
‘syuls 921 edeseq pue
asuy,] 8y} 104 spunj asied 03 01 Y3 O3 siaheld
Aayooy aw-plo s8uq uaD KON 9Z0T YEW
juswieuwino AevdoH

EOU.=me©Emﬁ:mmﬁmcEcsoummEmn_

-uopesauad Sulwoddn sy} JO sysa4alul
uo siseydwd ue yim SJUIAD Auno) e3eieq
sejeypory pue sueld usH BN ‘Jequieyd syl
yum Supiop 'si3pes| pue sinauaidanua A}
-uno) eSeieg jo uoneIaUI3 KBU 3} Bunuasal
~das sjenpiaipu oa813ua JO Wea} St U39 XN

~ Sjuang U39 IXON



MINUTES:
BARAGA COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
Tuesday, December 16th, 2025 5:00 PM - BCMH Main Conference Room (ABCD)

Present: Jayne Walbridge, Shirley Younggren, Carole LaPointe, Jim Loman, Burt Mason, Kate
Beer

Admin/Guests: Tom VanEss, Todd Peltola, Rob Stowe
Absent: Cathy Wadaga
Call to Order — Beer
Ms. Beer called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m.
1. Approval of Consent Agenda ** - All
Motion: Younggren, Second: LaPointe - All in favor, motion carried.

2. Approval of Minutes

a. Board Briefing of November 13th , 2025*
b. Closed Session of November 13th, 2025*
c. Board of Trustees Meeting of November 18th, 2025*

3. Medical Staff — Beer
a. Medical-Dental Staff Meeting Minutes of November 12th, 2025**

Motion: Loman, Second: LaPointe - All in favor, motion carried.

b. Medical-Dental Staff Executive & Credentials Committee

i.  Medical Staff Appointments, Reappointments, and Deletions of December
2025** - Belpedio

Motion: Loman, Second: Mason - All in favor, motion carried.

4. Audit Presentation - Jess Paisley

a. Request for Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year Audited Financials

Jess Paisley first presented the Bayside Village draft audit to both the Bayside
Village Board and the BCMH Board. The Bayside Village Board then considered
a resolution to approve the Bayside Village audit, pending receipt of the final
draft. A motion was made by Hokkanen and seconded by Foucault. All were in
favor, and the motion carried. The Bayside Village Board meeting was then
adjourned.

Following adjournment of the Bayside Village Board meeting, Jess Paisley
presented the BCMH fiscal year audited financial statements to the BCMH
Hospital Board. The Hospital Board considered a resolution to accept both the
Bayside Village audit and the BCMH audited financial statements. A motion was

Consent Agenda Iitem *
Action Item **
To be distributed at meeting ***



made by Mason and seconded by LaPointe. All were in favor, and the motion
carried.

5. Financial Update - Jestila

a. Approval of October 2025 Financial Statements
b. Approval of November 2025 Financial Statements

Jestila reviewed the October and November 2025 financial statements with the
Board. Cash on hand was reported at approximately $9.95 million. November
revenue totaled $4.6 million, with expenses just under $2.8 million, resulting in a
net loss of approximately $13,000. This was attributed to November having only
18 business days. Year-to-date revenue for the first two months totaled
approximately $10.4 million, with year-to-date profitability of approximately $900.
October was noted as a strong month, with a net gain of approximately $14,000.
Gross revenue for November was approximately $400,000 higher than the same
period last year. No resolution was required, as the financials remain preliminary.

6. Administrative Items - Stowe

a. BCMH Reappointment of Board Members*
b. 2026 BCMH Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule*

The BCMH Reappointment of Board Members and the 2026 BCMH Board of
Trustees Meeting Schedule were listed on the agenda. These items had been
addressed and approved at the prior Board Briefing meeting. No further action
was required at this meeting.

7. Bayside Update - Stowe/Dault

Dault provided an update on Bayside Village. The current census is 53. Ongoing
communication with the State continues. All citations have been cleared except for three,
and plans of correction have been submitted.

8. Wound Care Update - Peltola

Peltola introduced Kurt Monterosso, Director of Operations for the State of Michigan with
Healogics. Mr. Monterosso provided an informative presentation on the hyperbaric
chamber and its clinical uses.

9. Open House Update - Stowe

An open house is scheduled for Thursday, January 8, from 4:00-6:00 p.m. Efforts are
underway to secure coverage from TV6. Two news stories are planned: one to announce
the availability of the hyperbaric chamber and invite the public to the open house, and a
second to announce the da Vinci robotic system and promote the event. A press release
will be issued in advance of the open house to launch the public naming process for the
da Vinci robot. The selected name will be announced following the event.

10. Physician Group Update - Van Ess

A Rural Health Clinic survey was conducted two weeks ago, with no deficiencies
identified. The previous survey occurred seven years ago. The next quarter is expected

Consent Agenda Item *
Action tem **
To be distributed at meeting ***



to be busy with the onboarding of new providers. As a result, space needs will be
reviewed after the holidays.

11. Quality Update —Peltola

No report.

12. Management Update (attached)

a.

b.

13. Other

CEO Report*: Marketing, Employee Recognition, Home Care and Hospice,
Corporate Compliance, Senior Life Solutions, Human Resources, Pharmacy
CFO Report*: Finance, Revenue Cycle, Purchasing, Information Technology,
DME

DON Report*: Acute, Emergency, Surgical Services, Ambulatory, Social
Services, Utilization Review/Infection Prevention, Education

Director of Provider Services Report*: Physician Group, Telemedicine, Specialty
Clinic

Director of Ancillary Services Report*: Imaging, Laboratory, Therapies
Director of Quality Management Report*: Maintenance, Housekeeping,
Dietary/Dietician, HIPAA/Risk

Stowe shared that a strategic acquisition remains on track. Verbal agreement has been
reached on the terms discussed in closed session.

14. Public Comment -

Sue Ingram shared that staff have expressed positive feedback, thanking the Board for
the recent raises, bonus, and holiday party.

15. Next Meeting: January 20th, 2026 5:00pm -BCMH Main Conference Room

16. Adjournment —Beer

Ms. Beer adjourned the meeting at 6:29 p.m.

Motion: LaPointe, Second: Younggren - All in favor, motion carried.

ABOUT BARAGA COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL: BCMH is a 15 bed critical access hospital. Founded in 1952,
BCMH is a thriving rural healthcare system focused on addressing the needs of community members of Baraga
County. Employing over 200 people, BCMH houses a family medicine clinic, walk-in convenient care clinic, specialty
clinics, surgical services, 24/7 emergency services, imaging, rehab, laboratory, and social services.

MISSION: BCMH partners with patients to educate, coordinate, treat, and manage the health of the community.

VISION: To improve the well-being of the community.

CORE VALUES: PREACT- Patients First, Respect, Excellence, Accountability, Compassion, Teamwork

ROLE IN THE COMMUNITY: BCMH educates the community, coordinates care, and treats and manages disease.

Consent Agenda Item *

Action Item **

To be distributed at meeting ***



L Vg AR

COPPER SHORES
COMMUNITY HEALTH
FOUNDATION

January 15, 2026

County of Baraga
2 South Main Street
LAnse, MI 49946

To whom it may concern,

On behalf of Copper Shores Community Health Foundation, we want to thank you for your
contributions in benefit of UPSET West.

Please retain this letter as it serves as a receipt for your gift for 2025. Federal law requires us to
inform you that Copper Shores Community Health Foundation, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization,
did not provide you with any goods or services for your contribution.

The Copper Shores Community Health Foundation is dedicated to enhancing our community and
offering hope of a healthier and better tomorrow. Thank you for joining our efforts and giving your
support - both are truly appreciated.

Do Good Things!

2ot

Kevin N. Store
President / CEO

Copper Shores Community Health Foundation - Tax ID #38-3022945 - 501(c)(3) Nonprofit

Copper Shores Community Health Foundation - 400 Quincy Street - 5th Floor - Hancock, MI 49930
Phone: 906.523.5920 - Fax: 906.523.5925 -Email: info@coppershores.org www.coppershores.org
Mission: To positively influence a healthful community through enhanced philanthropy and collaboration.



Village of L'Anse
101 N. Main Street

4 Fe P.O. Box 157
n Se L'Anse, Ml 49946
2 Phone: 906-524-6116
: Fax: 906-524-6146
Vll]age by the bay Email: manager@lansemi.org

To: Interested Local Governments, Organizations and Utility Companies
From: Village of L'Anse, Michigan
RE: Notice of Intent to Amend a Master Plan

Date: January 12, 2026

Please be advised that the Village of L’Anse is beginning the process of amending its Master
Plan. Amendments will focus primarily on the topic of housing.

Pursuant to Michigan Public Act 33 of 2008, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, you are
hereby notified of our intent to amendment the plan and are invited to cooperate,
comment, and participate in this process. Future required notifications will indicate how to
access documents in electric format. If you object to the option to only access materials in
electronic format (versus hard copy), please inform us immediately by e-mailing me at
manager@lansemi.org. Any questions can also be directed to that e-mail or by calling me at
(906) 524-6116.

ol o S S

Bob LaFave
Village Manager - L'Anse, Michigan

The Village of L’Anse is an Equal Opportunity Provider, and Employer



